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I NDEPEN DENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
the Municipal Legislature
Municipality of Cidra
Cidra, Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Municipality of Cidra, Puerto Rico (Municipality), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2008, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
respective financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business type-
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Municipality of Cidra, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in

financial position and cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

L

Calle Paran6 #1686, El Cerezal, San Juan, P.R. 00926-3144 . Tel. (7g7) 't77-g044 I Fax (7g1) 761-g3.71
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I NDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTI NUED.)

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 10, 2008, on our consideration of the Municipality's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through L2 and the Budgetary
Comparison Schedule-General Fund on page 44 are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Municipality of Cidra's basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- Profit Organizations, and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

San Juan, Puerto Rico
December 10, 2008

Stamp No.2312216 of the Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy of this report.
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Ldpez-Vega, CPA, PSC

Certified Public Accountants / l"{anagernent Advisors
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

This discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Cidra (the Municipality) financial
pefformance provides an overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year
ended on June 30, 2008. This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)should be iead
in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements and the accompanying
notes to those financial statements. The discussion and analysis includes comparative data
for prior year as this information is available for the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2OO7.
This MD&A is prepared in order to comply with such pronouncement and, among other
purposes, to provide the financial statements users with the following major information:

L. a broader basis in focusing important issues;

2. acknowledgement of an overview of the Municipality's financial activities;

3. provide for an evaluation of its financial condition as of the end of the indicated fiscal
year, compared with prior year results;

4. identification of uses of funds in the financing of the Municipality's variety of
activities and;

5. assess management's ability to handle budgetary functions.

F!NANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following comments about the financial condition and results of operations as reflected
in the financial statements prepared for fiscal year 2008 deserve special mention:

L. Total assets of the Municipality amounted to $96,628,686 which represents an
increase of 5o/o compared to prior fiscal year.

2. At the end of fiscal year 2008, total liabilities amounted to $48,670,388. Out of said
amount, $36,696,151 corresponded to long-term liabilities of which $31,915,000
represented the outstanding balance of bonds and notes issued. The Municipality
continued to meet all debt service requirements, most of which was paid from self
generated revenues.

3. Total net assets of the Municipality amounted to $47,958,298 which represents an
increase of 4o/o compared to prior fiscal year.

4. Total revenues available for the financing of activities as reflected in the Statement
of Activities amounted to $37,526,757, derived from the following sources:
$470,891; from charges for services; $4,450,813 from operating grants and
contributions; $1,685,563 from capital grants and contributions obtained from other
sources, and $24,91-:9,49O from general revenues available.

3



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSION AND ANALYS|S _ (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Ft NANCIAL HtcH LIcHTS (CONTTNUED)

5. Total expenses incurred to afford the cost of all functions and programs as reflected
in the Statement of Activities amounted to $29,556,356.

6. As reflected in the Statement of Activities, the current fiscal year operations
contributed to an increase in the Net Assets figure by $1,970,4or.

7. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's Governmental Funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $i4,285,2!L.

8. ln the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenue decreased
$1-,257,429 (or 4o/o), nevertheless governmental activities expenditures increased
$2,023,594 (or 60/o).

9. As the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's general fund balance
amounted to $1,377,811 compared to a fund balance of $1,852,158 in the prior
fiscal year.

10.The actual General Fund budgetary activities resulted in a favorable balance of
$L,429,222.

11. The Municipality issued bonds and notes amounting to $1,580,000 to fund
constructions projects.

FUNDAMENTALS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTATTON

The newapproach used in the presentation of thefinancial statements of the Municipality is
based on a government-wide view of such statements as well as a presentation of individual
funds behavior during fiscal year 2008. The combination of these two perspectives provide
the user the opportunity to address significant questions concerning the content of said
financial statements, and provide the basis for a comparable analysis of future years
performance. The comparative analysis is a meaningful and useful management tool for
municipal management in the decision making process.

Under the aforementioned approach, assets and liabilities are recognized using the accrual
basis of accounting which is similar to the method used by most private enterprises. This
means that current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS COM PON ENTS

The basic financial statements consist of the government wide financial statements, the
major funds financial statements and the notes to the financial statements which provide
details, disclosure and description of the most important items included in said statements.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIry OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS _ (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the
focus from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the MunicipJlity as a
whole (government-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-
wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for
comparison (year to year or government to government) and enhance the Municipality's
accountability.

GOVERNMEMENT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the financial
statements with a broad overview of the Municipality's finances in a manner similar to
private-sector com pa n ies.

The Statement of Net Asset presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between both reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Municipality is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The Statement of Activities is
focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the
government's general tax and other revenues, This is intended to summarize and simplify
the user's analysis of cost of various governmental services.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most
significant funds, not the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has only one kind of fund
which is the governmental fund.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the
Government Wide Financial Statements, Government Fund Financial Statements, focus on
near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating the
M u n icipa I ity's nea r term fi na ncia I req u irements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYS|S - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

FUND FtNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government wide
financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic financial statements may better
understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's nearterm financial decisions. Both of
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure-roads, bridges,
underground pipes [unless associated with a utility], etc.) have not been reported nor
depreciated in government financial statements. GASB 34 requires that these assets be
valued and reported within the Governmental column of the Government-Wide Statements.
Additionally, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate these assets over their
estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management designed to maintain the
service delivery potential to near perpetuity. lf the government develops the asset
management system (the modified approach) which periodically (at least every third year),
by category, measures and demonstrated its maintenance of locally established levels of
service standards, the government may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of
depreciation. The information about the condition and maintenance of condition of the
government infrastructure assets should assist financial statement users in evaluating a
local government and its performance over time.

The Municipality elected to depreciate infrastructure assets instead of using the modified
approach.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. The Municipality's combined net assets (excess of assets over liabilities)
totaled $47,958,298 at the end of 2008, compared to $45,987,897 at the end of the
previous year.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT',S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYS|S - (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Net Assets (Continued)

Condensed Statement of Net
Asseb
Current assets
Capital assets
Others assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

lnvested in capitalassets, net
of related debt

Restricted

Unrestdcted

Total net assets

96,628,686 91 ,709,074

11,974,237 13,874,383

36,696,151 31 ,846,794

48,670,388 45,721 ,177

38,397,907 36,1 56,567
12,907,400 12,294,212
(3,347,009) (2,462,882)

$47,958,298 $45,987,897

4,919,612 5%

(1 ,900, 146) (14"/")

4,849,357 15%

2,949,211 6o/o

2,24't,34O 6%
613,1 88 5%

(884,127) 36%

$1 ,970,401 4o/"

2008 2OO7 Chanqe 7o

$25,806,359 $28,2O2,5O7 ($2,396,148) (8o/")
70,667,257 32,934,263 37,732,994 1150/o

1 55,070 30,572,304 (30,417,234) (99%)

$92,000,000

$ 82,000,000

$72,000,000

$ 62,000,000

$52,000,000

$42,000,000

$32,000,000

$22,000,000

$ 12,000,000

$2,000,000

82008
42007

Assets Liabilities Net Assets
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

The Municipality's net assets increase by $ 1,970,4O1. Approximately 62 percent of the
Municipality's total revenue came from taxes, while 33 percent resulted from grants and
contributions, including federal aid. Charges for Services provided 1 percent of the total
revenues. lnterest and investment earnings and miscellaneous provided 4 percent of the
total revenues. The Municipality's expenses cover a range of services. The largest
expenses were for health and welfare services, general government, public works, and
public safety. As follow, is presented a comparative analysis of governmental-wide data.
With this analysis, the readers have comparative information with the percentage of
change in revenues and expenses from prior year to current year.

Condensed Statement of Activities
Program revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Propedy taxes
Municipal sales and use tax
Municipal license tax
Grants and contributions not

restricted to specific programs
lnterest and investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses:
General govemment
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Economic development
Community development
Education
lnterest on long-term debt

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

$64,4U 160/0

1,019,614 30"/"
(ffi7,428) (28"/o)

(566,274) (ey")
386,590
257,429 2"/o

(1,678,973) (28%)
(167,908) (16%)
(213,367) (35%)

(1,565,883) (5"/")

827,039 9Y"
(366,3e8) (30%)
910,242 11%

(261,990) (25%)
728,458 22"/o

(1,126,082) (81y.)
1,188,504
(101,484) (91y.)
239,867 26"/0

2,038,156 7"/"

(3,604,039) (65%)

5,574,4Q 147"

$1,970,401 40/o

Chanqe

$470,891
4,450,813
1,685,563

6,014,529
1,423,151

1 1,931 ,580

4,303,043
gil,727
392,460

31,526,757

10,334,760
874,643

9,572,873
789,960

4,091,540
zffi,078

2,4Q,084
10,389

1,174,O29

29,556,356

1 ,970,401

45,987,897

$406,457
3,2131 ,199
2,352,991

6,580,803
1,036,561

11,674,151

5,982,016
1,022,635

ffis,827

33,092,640

9,507,721
1,241,041
8,662,631
1 ,051,950
3,363,082
1,394,160
1 ,251,580

11 1 ,873
934,162

27,518,200

5,574,440

40,413,457

8
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT',S DISCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

CHANGES rN NET ASSETS (CONTTNUED)

for services

grants and

Capital grants and
contributions

Property taxes

Municipal sales and use tax

Municipal license tax

and contributions not
restricted to specilic

lnterest and investment
earnings

S

Revenues 2008

\v
Expenses 2008

EGeneral government

! Public safety

tr Public works

trCulture and recreation

IHealth and welfare

I Economic development

I Community development

llnterest on long{erm debt

9



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIry OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT AND DTSCUSSTON ANALYSIS - (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spend able resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Municipality's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $74,285,271- an increase of $45,235 in comparison
with the prior year. There are reservations of fund balance amounting to $13,165,885.
This is the fund balance that it is not available for new spending because it has already
been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior fiscal year
($258,485), 2) to pay debt service ($2,137,7OT), 3) to pay for capital projects
($4,817,376) and 4)for other purposes ($5,958,31-7).

Within the governmental funds, it is included the general fund which is the chief operating
fund of the Municipality. As of June 30, 2008, the general fund has a fund balance of
$1,377,811,.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Municipality's budget in
order to include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the fiscal
year based on current developments that positively affected the Municipality's finances.
lncreases in budgeted expenditures were also made since the law mandates a balanced
budSet.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapitalAssets

The Municipality's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2OO8, amounts to
$95,173,820, net of accumulated depreciation of $ 24,506,563, leaving a net book value
of $70,667,257. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements,
equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress. lnfrastructure assets are items

10



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT AND DTSCUSSTON ANALYSTS - (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATTON (CoNTTNUED)

that are normally immovable and of value only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets
and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items.

The total increase in the Municipality's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal
year was about 77o/o in terms of net book value. Depreciation charges for the year totaled
$ 1,856,983.

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond
issuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction activities are
committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As

of June 30, 2008, the Municipality has $ 3,834,185 of unexpended proceeds mainly from
bond issuances that are committed to future construction activities.

Debt Administration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general
obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and
taxing power of each municipality may be pledged. See "Limitations on Ability of
Municipalities to lssue General Obligation Debt-The Municipal Bonds" for a general
description of such limitations.

The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municipality to be able to issue
additional general obligation bonds and notes such Municipality must have sufficient
"payment capacity". Act No. 64 provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment
capacity" to incur additional general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's
Redemption Fund and the annual amounts collected with respect to such Municipality's
Special Additional Tax (as defined below), as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service
to maturity the Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional
proposed general obligation debt ("Payment Capacity").

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such
amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds
and notes. ln addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds
and notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of general

obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's
Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available
to make debt service payments on general obligation municipal bonds and

L1,



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT',S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

cAplTAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CoNTINUED)

notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the Municipality, together with
moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, are not sufficient to cover such
debt service. lt has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt service on
general obligation debt of the Municipality.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants

to carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have

been very predictable with increases of approximately two (2o/o) percenl. Federal grant

revenues may very if new grants are available but the revenue also is very predictable.

Those factors were considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the 2008-
2009 fiscal years.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer,

customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances
and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability. lf you have questions about the
report or need additional financial information, contact the Municipality's Chief Financial

Officer.

L2



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Municipality of Cidra

Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2008

Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash with fiscal agent

Accounts receivable:

Municipal license tax

lntergovernmental

Others

Capitalassets:

Land, improvements and construction in progress

Buildings, infrastruture and other capital assets,

net of depreciation

Total capital assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to other governmental entities

Deferred revenues:

Municipal license tax

Federal grant revenues

lnterest payable

Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net Assets
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:

Capital projects

Debt service

Other purposes

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets

15,7t5,O32
10,o32,846

2,L57
51,o20

155,070

28,264,507

35,545,146

5,310

600,000

6,257,604

15,720,342
70,032,846

2,151,

57,020
155,070

28,864,507

4]-,802,750

63,809,653 6,857,604 70,667,257

89,765,772 6,862,974 96,628,686

2,776,664
277,930

9,113,339
777,954

L,491,767
28.534,984

354,350

200,000
6,470,000

2,776,664
277,930

9,113,339
L7t,954
354,350

1,691,,767

35,004,984

41,646,038 7,024,350 48,670,388

38,564,653

4,877,376
2,137,707
5,958,317

(3,352,319)

(166,746)

5,310

48.779.734 $ (161-,436)

38,397,907

4,877,376
2,13L,707
5,958,317

(3,347,009)

13
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

47,958,298



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Municipality of Cidra

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

ProgEm Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Chargs ln Net Assets

Operating

charges lor Grants and

seruices Contributions

Capital

Grcnts and

Contilbutions

Primary Government

Functions,/ProgEms Expenses

Govenmental

Activities

Business-type

Activities

General government

Public safety

Public works

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation

Economic development

Community development

Education

lnterest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Busine$ type activities:

General government

lnteresl on long term debt

Total business type activities

Total primary government

$ 415,891 $ 4,450,813

ss.oo0

$ 9,993,014

874,643

9,572,413

4,091,540

789,960

268,078

2,440,O44

10,389

811,857

$ 28,852,438

$ 144,896

230,494

40.501

$ 481,116

52,485

2,153,61 1

1,581,814

181,787

1.685.563

(9,367,002)

(s91,664)

(5,733,699)

(2,5O9,726)

(567,672)

(268,078)

12,440,O44)

(10,389)

(811,857)

(9,367,002)

(591,664)

(5,733,699)

\2,509,726)

(567,672)

(268,078)

(2,440,O44)

(10,389)

(811,857)

$ 1,685,563 (22.300.t71\ \22,3OO,77 7)

341,746

362,172

703.918

(286,746)

{362,L72J

(286,746)

(362,172],

Q2.300,L71\

(648,918) (648,918)

(648,918) (22,949,089)$ 29.556.3s6 $ 470,891 $ 4,450,813 $ 1,685,563

General revenues:

Propertytaxes

Municipal license tax

N4unicipal sales and use tax

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

lnterest and investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Transters

Total general revenues and transrers

change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

6,014,529

11,931,580

1,423,L5L

4,303,043

a54,727

392,460

e47,482\

6,0't4,529

11,93't,580

1,423,151

4,303,043

a54,727

392.460

487,482

24,432,OO4 447.442 24.919,490

2,L37,437

45,987,897

(161,436) 1,970,401

45,987,897

48,1t9,734 (161,436) $ 47,958,298

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. L4



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Municipality of Cidra

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2008

Genelal

Fund -(01)

Special Revenue Capital Projects

Fund-(o2) state Fund-(2o & 21)

& Federal Grants State & Federal Grants

Other

Governmental

Funds

Total

Governmental

Funds

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash with fiscal agent

Accounts receivable:

lvlunicipal licenses tax

lntergovernmental

Other
Due from other funds

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities :

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to other governmental entities

Due to other funds

Deferred revenues:
N4unicipal license tax
lntergovernmental
Federal grant revenues

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Reserved for:

Encumbrances

Capital projects

Reserved reported in nonmajor funds:

Debt service fund
Other purposes

lln reserved:

Undesigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

L7,O40,OL2 $

2,757
57,O20

811
789,7 44

2,400,986
4,066,954

835

1,894,504 $

3,834,185
379,530

2,737,707
$ 15,715,032

10,032,846

2,75!
779,074
27,076

947,844

727,994
26,265
44,664 106,601

_9____$8q!4q

$ 1,061,673
277,930

1,965

9,113,339
57,O20

$ 6,468,775

242,613

5L7,326

5,799,618 $ 2,745,832 $ 26,897,963

622,748

360,094

190,230

62,459

71L,954

2,776,664
277p30
947,844

9,113,339
5!,O20

7L7,954

LO,505,927 759,939 982,242 364,643 72,612,751

258,48s

2,381,189

$ 2,745,832

254,485
4,877,376

2,137,707
5,958,317

7,719,326

\4,2A5,277

63,809,653
51,020

(30,026,150)

$ 48,119,734

4,Afi 376

5,708,835

2,131",707
249,482

L,L79,326

7,377,871 5,708,835 4,877,376

$ 11,883,738 $ 6,468,77 4 5,799,618

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are notfinancial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Accrual basis of accounting accounts receivable recognized in government-wide financial statements

Long-term liabilities, including accrued interest payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore,

are not reported in the funds

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement. 15



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Municipality of Cidra

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2O08

General

Fund -(01)

Special Revenue Capital Plojects

Fund-(o2)State Fund-(2o & 21)

& Federal Grants State & Federal Grants

other Total

Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

Revenues

Property taxes

l\4unicipal sales and use tax

l\4unicipal license taxes

Licenses,permits and other local taxes

Charges for services

lntergovern mental

Fines and forfeitures

Rent of property

lnterest

Federal grants

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:

General government

Public safety

Public works

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation

Economic development

Community development

Education

Debt service:

Principal

lnterest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Long-term debt issued

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

22,200,975 2,457,057

$ 4,462,552

11,931,580

477,854

22,52L

3,891,189

230,494

5,501

852,824

392,460

t,423,15L

722,375

782,572

35,000

!,769
53,233

38,951

1,685,563

L34

1,323,990

227,987

3,173,087

66,266

5,786,542

1,651,138

11,931,580

471-,854

144,896

6,359,324

230,494

40,501

854,727

3,226,320
497,677

1,685,697 4,791,330 31,135,053

17355,577

1,764,630

4,97t,557
2,699,062

1,011,351

268,078

2,574,670

353,532

259,819

49,550

6,392,370

13,930,187

1,764,630

!7,7L7,453

4,056,557

1,011,351

268,078

2,026,834

10,389

470,000

811,857

6,392,370

1,097,676

1,977,284

10,389

470,000

811,857

4,367,20622,070,189 3,237,571"

424,724

227,946
(47,879)

36,067,336

(4s32,283)

393,457

(880,939)

5,465,000

130,786

765,471-

(605,133) (227,987)

(780,520) (4,706,673)

3,885,000

3,A22,444

1,580,000

1,580,000(605,133)

(47 4,347\

1,852,158

$ 1,377,811

(3,126,673)

4,877,376

604,29!

1,776,898

4,977,578

45,235

74,239,976

180,167

3,041,964

2,666,87!
$ s,708,8s5: $ 2,381,189 $ 14,2A5,277

u$
h,R

$l\')-
tI"

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement' 16



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

MunicipalitY of Cidra

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Chan$es in Fund Balances of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2OO8

v Net Change in Fund Balances -Total Governmental Funds $ 45,235

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are

different because:

Governmental Funds repoft capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
v Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, the cost

of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation

expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period. L8,329,466

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Government-Wide

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, but they do not

require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation

expense is not reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds 0,690,237)

Some expenses repofted in the Statement of Activities do not require the use

of current financial resources and, therefore, are not repofted as expenditures
v in Governmental Funds. (9,941,331)

change in landfill accrual 47,OOO

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activities do not provide

current financial resources in Governmental Funds. 336,704

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to

Governmental Funds, while the repayment of principal of long-term debt

consumes current financial resources. This is the amount by which debt

proceeds exceed debt service principal payments.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

(4,995,000)

$ 2,L31,,837

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. t7



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND-BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITY.ENTERPRISE FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets:

Land

Building

Accum ulated depreciation

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities:

Current Liabilities:

HUD Section 108 Loans Guarantee-Principal

lnterest Payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

LongTerm Liabilities:

HUD Section 108 Loan Guarantee

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

lnvested in Capital Assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Business Type

Activitiy

Enterprise

5,310

5,310

600,000
6,669,838
(4!2,234)

6,857,604

6,862,9L4

200,000
354,350

554,350

6,470,000

6.470,000

7,024,350

(166,746)
5,310

$ (161,436)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement' 18



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES ]N NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND-BUSI NESS TYPE ACTIVITY-ENTERPRISE FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Operating revenues:

Charges for services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expend itures

Operating income (Loss)

Non{perating revenues (expenses):

Payments-Principal-HUD Section 108 Loan

lnterest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfers

Transfers from Governmental Activities, net

Change in Net Assets

Total net assets-beginn ing

Total net assets-ending

Business - Type

Activities
Enterprise

55,000

55,000

t66,746

L66,746

(1,17,746)

(175,000)
(362,t72)

(537,L72)

(648,918)

487,482

(161,436)

(161,436)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 19



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND- BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Cash Flows from OperatinE Activities:

Receipts from Customers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financins Activities:

Principal paid on capitaldebt
lnterest paid

Transfer in from the General Fund

Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital and Related Financin$ Activities

Balance-beginning of the Year

Balance-end ofthe year

Reconciliation of OperatinE lncome to Net Cash Provided (Used) by

OperatinE Activities:

Operating loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:

Depreciation expenses

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Noncash investinEl, capital and financing activitiesl

55,OOO

55,000

(1_7s,000)

(362,L72)

487,482

(4e,6e0)

5,310

$ (LL1,,746)

L66,746

L66,746

$ 55,ooo

none

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 20



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

1.. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGN!FICANT ACCOUNT!NG POLICIES

The Municipality of Cidra (the Municipality) was founded on the year 19L7. The

Municipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body' lt is

governed by a Mayor and a fourteen member Municipal Legislature who are elected for a
four-year term.

The Municipality provides a full range of services for its citizens. These services include

public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and welfare, economic

development, education, and other miscellaneous services.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the Municipality conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("USGAAP") as

applicable to governmental units.

ln June 1-999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.

34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's and Discussion and Analysis for State

and Local Governments." This Statement, known as the Reporting Model, provides for the

most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 2O

years and affects the way the Municipality prepares and presents financial information. The

Statement was adopted as of July 1,, 2OO2.ln addition to this Statement, GASB Statement

No. 37, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State

and Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial

Statement Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial

statements.

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization

of local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement
permits an optional four-year delay for implementation to fiscal year ended on June 30,

2OO7.The Municipality implemented the capitalization of infrastructure since July 1, 2OO2.

21,



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BAS|C FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

!. oRGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICTES (CONTTNUED)

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Municipality:

A. Component Units

ln evaluating how to define the Municipality for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential

component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, of the GASB, as amended by the GASB Statement
No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units an

amendment of GASB Statement 74". The basic, but not the only criterion for including a

potential component unit within the reporting entity is if elected officials of a primary
government are financially accountable for the entity. Financial accountability exists if
the primary governmental appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, and if
either one of the following conditions exist: the primary government can impose its will on

the other entity or the potential exists for the other entity to (1) provide specific financial
benefits to or (2) impose specific financial burdens on the primary government. A second
criterion used in evaluating potential component units is if the nature and significance of
the relationship between the entity and a primary government are such that to exclude
the entity from the financial reporting entity would render the financial statements
misleading or incomplete. Based on the above criteria, the Municipality does not have

component units to include within its reporting entity.

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

Financial information of the Municipality is presented in this report as follow:

1. Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and
provides an analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities.

2. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the Municipality and

its component units, if any. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by

taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type

activities, if any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

lnterfund activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the duplicating
effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a

Siven function or segment is offset by program revenue.

22



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

1,. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|CTES (CONTINUED)

Direct expenses are those that are charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

3. Fund financial statements focus on information about the Municipality's major
governmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. The Municipality reports the following major
governmental funds:

General Fundlol) is the accounting entity in which all governmental activity, except
that which is required to be accounted for in another fund, is accounted for. lts
revenues consist mainly of taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenue,
charges for services and other.

Special Revenue Fund - (O2) State & Federal Grants- is the accounting entity in which
revenues derived from federal and state grants, is accounted for. The uses and
limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or
federal and state statutes.

Capital Projects Fund - (2O & 27 ) State and Federal Grants - is the accounting entity
in which revenues derived from local funds and state grants or other restricted revenue
sources related to capital projects, is accounted for. The uses and limitations of each
capital project fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or state statutes.

4. Proprietary Fund Types focus on report any activities for which a fee is charged to
external users for good or services. The Municipality reports the following proprietary

fund:

Enterprise Fund - The Enterprise Fund, which was established in April 2OO7, is used to
account for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a similar manner as
private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general
public on a continuing basis, are financed or recovered primary through uses, charges;
or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, accountability, or other purpose. The enterprise fund of the Municipality
includes land and buildings known as "Hotel Treasure lsland" located in "Ave. Las

Americas, BO. Bayam6n at Cidra, Puerto Rico. The source of income comes from rent
received from rent received from facility of "Hotel Treasure lsland".
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

t. oRGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCTES (CONTINUED)

5. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's
understanding of the basic financial statements.

6. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule-
general fund and other types of data required by GASB.

7. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedule-general fund.

C. Financial reporting presentation

The accounts of the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity, and discrete presentations of enterprise fund.
The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.

Government has established the following fund categories, fund types, account group and
discrete presentation of enterprise fund:

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - ls the general operating fund of the Municipality. lt is used to account for
all governmental activity, exceptthose required to be accounted for in anotherfund.

Specral Revenue Fund - Local and State Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue
sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by

Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Special Revenue Fund - Section 8 - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for
revenues derived from section 8 choice voucher program. The uses and limitations of
each special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state
statutes.

Special Revenue Fund - Federal Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for
revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each spdcial revenue
fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Capital Projects Fund - State and Federal Grants - Capital Projects Fund are used to
account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

1,. ORGANIZATTON AND SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCTES (CONTINUED)

Debt Service Fund - Debt Service Fund used to account for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs.

Special Reyenue Fund - Other Federal Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each
special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state
statutes.

Proprietary Fund Tvpes

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund statements consist of State of Net Assets,

Statement of Activities and Statement of Cash Flows. This fund accounts for exchange
like transactions, like private enterprise and its operations are intended to be self
supporting through charges to users. These statements are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus, which concentrates on an entity or fund's net assets.

All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net assets) during
the period are reported. The statements are reported on the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses recognized in

the period in which the associated liability is incurred.

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the Municipality conform

to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("USGAAP")

as applicable to governmental units. The accounting and financial reporting treatment
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when

earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of

related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they

are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility

requirements imposed by the provider have been met'

The Municipality has elected not to apply all Statements and lnterpretations issued by the
Financial Accounting Standard Board after November 30, 1989, in accordance with GASB

Statement No. 20.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

1,. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF STGNTF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLICtES (CONTINUED)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within the current period or soon
enough thereafter. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures when payment is due.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds from issuance of general long-term debt reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, other taxes, licenses, rent, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when the government receives cash.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issue prior to December 1,
1-989, generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to
this same limitation. The Municipality has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants, and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments, if any. lnternally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include alltaxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they
are needed.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

L.

E.

oRGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF STGNtFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTINUED)

Assets, liabilities and net assets

1,. Cash and cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent- The Municipality's cash and
cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents special additional property
tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the
payment of the Municipality's debt service, as established by law. Also, cash with
fiscal agent consists of unused proceeds of bonds and notes issued for the
acquisition of equipment and construction of major capital improvements.

2. Receivables and payables- Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred
to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due lo/from other funds."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to
indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable
available financial resou rces.

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which
are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic
conditions. lntergovernmental receivables in the General Fund represent mostly
contributions from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority, which contribute a
specific percentage of their revenues as payment in lieu of taxes. lntergovernmental
receivable in the special revenue fund represent amounts owed to the Municipality
for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded programs.

lnventories- lnventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and,
consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets.

Capital assets- Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure
assets (e.9., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the
governmental activities column in the governmental-wide financial statements. The
Municipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

3.

4.
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1,. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGN!FICANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.

Capital assets of the Municipality are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Descriotion

Buildings and site improvements
lnfrastructure
Works of art
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment

Useful Life

4O years
40 years
10 years
5 years
5 years

3 to 5 years

Capitalization threshold

$r
$r
$r
$r

$25
$25

5. Long-term obligations- The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial
statements included general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long-
term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other
governmental entities and landfill closure and post closure care costs.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances
cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures in the general fund.

6. Compensated absences- Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days
per month up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully
vested to the employees from the first day of work. All vacation pay is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide financial statements.

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum of
90 days. Upon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated
and unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of
service with the Municipality. All sick leave pay and salary related benefits are accrued
when incurred in the governmental-wide financial statements when the employee
meets such criteria.

7. Claims and judgments- The estimated amount of the liability for claims and
judgments, which is due on demand, such as from adjudicated or settled claims, is

recorded in the general fund when the liability is incurred.
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NOTES TO BASTC FtNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)
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t. oRGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF STGN|FTCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

8. Reservations of fund balance- Reservations of fund balance in the fund financial
statements represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for
specific future use or are not appropriated for expenditure. The Municipality has the
following reservations of fund balance:

a. Encumbrances- Represent future expenditures under purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments. These committed amounts generally will become
liabilities in future periods as the goods or services are received.

b. Capital Projects- Represent the reservation of amounts to be used for future
expenditures for capital projects under contacts and other commitments. These
committed amounts generally will become liabilities in future periods as the
projects a re com pleted.

c. Debt Service Fund- Represents net assets available to finance future debt service
payments.

d. Other Purposes- Represents net assets available for specific use and/or legally
segregated for other specific future use.

9. lnterfund and intra-entity transactions- The Municipality has the following types of
transactions among funds:

a. Operating Transfers- Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
"Operating transfer-in" by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers-out" by
the disbursing fund.

b. lntra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds of the primary government
are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as
amounts due to and due from other funds.

10.Risk financing- The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft,
tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico
Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the Municipalities of Puerto
Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the gross
property tax collections by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center ("CR|M") for the
year ended June 30, 2008 amounted to approximately $358,000. The current
insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated. The CRIM also deducted
approximately $406,000 for workers compensation insurance covering all municipal
employees.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1.. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

11. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financia! Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance-

total governmental funds and net assets-governmental activities as reported in the

gou.rir"nt-wide statement of net assets. The two elements of that reconciliation

6xplains that "long term liabilities, including compensated absences, bonds and notes

payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported

in the funds", and that "capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources" and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The details of this

reconciliation are as follows:

Total Net Assets -
Governmental Activities

Net assets invested in capital assets. net of related debt

Capital assets, net of depreciation

Deduct:
Bonds Payable
Notes Payable

Net assets restricted for caoital projects

Fund balance restricted for capital projects

Net assets restricted for debt service

Fund balance restricted for debt service

Net assets restricted for other purposes

Fund balance restricted for other purposes

Net assets unrestricted (deficit)

$ 63,809,653

(20,530,000)
(4.715.00)

L,377,8t1,

51,,O20

(3,456,299)
(812,000)
(301,835)
QL1,,OL6I

$ 38,564,653

4,8L7,376

2,L31,,707

5,958,31-7

(3.352,319)

$___a8.l19J34

General fund - total fund balance: $

Add:
Accrual basis account receivable

Deduct:
Compensated absences
Landfill obligation
LIMS
State lnsurance Fund CorPoration

Total net assets - Elovernmental activities
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NOTES TO BASTC FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

2. DEPOSITS

Under Commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks
must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository
insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of
Puerto Rico. ln addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB).

The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banks of $11,04O,O72 in the general fund,
$2,400,986 in the special revenue fund (02), $1,894,504 in the capital projects fund -
state and local grants and $379,530 in the others governmental funds were fully
collateralized at June 30, 2008.

The deposits at GDB of $4,066,954 in the special revenue fund (02), $3,834,1-85 in the
capital projects fund - state and federal grants and $2,131-,707 in the others governmental
funds that is restricted for debt service fund, are unsecured and uncollateralized, as no
collateral is required to be carried by governmental banks.

RECEIVABLES

A. Municipal Lrcense lax- The Municipality imposes a municipal license tax on all
businesses that operate within the Municipality, which are not totally or partially exempt
from the tax pursuant to the lndustrial lncentives Acts of the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico. This is a self-assessed tax based on the business volume in gross sales as shown
in the tax return that is due on April 15 of each year. Entities with sales volume of
$1,000,000 or more must include audited financial statements together with the tax
return. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the tax rates were as follows:

1. Financial business- 1,.5O% of gross revenues

2. Other organizations- 0.5O% of gross revenues

This tax is due in two equal installments on July 1 and January 1 of each fiscal year. A
discount of 5o/o is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. Municipal
license tax receivable represents filed municipal license tax returns that were
uncollected as of June 3O, 2008, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year is
recorded as deferred revenues.

B. lnter$overnmental- lntergovernmental receivable in the general fund represents the
balance owed from the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) at June 30, 2008,
as described in Note 6. Also, part of this property tax receivable represents the amount
due from the CRIM related to delinquent debts. Following is a detail of the property tax
receivables:

3.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

3. RECETVABLES (CONTTNUED)

Governmental Entitv

Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM)

Total

Program Description

Com m unity Development Block G rants- Entitlement

Total

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2008 are summarized as follows:

lntergovernmental receivables in the Other Governmental Funds represent mainly
expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by the Federal Government. Following is a
detail of the intergovernmental receivables:

Amount

$ 51.020

$ 51.020

Amount

727.994

$_ua94

Pavable Fund

$ 1,965
577,326
360,094

62.459

$34L844

Amount

$ 605,133

227,997

47.81.9

$__880p39

a. Due trom/to other fund:

Fund

General Fund (01)
Special Revenue Fund (02)
Capital Projects Funds (2O &27)
Other Governmental Fund

Total

Fund

Special Revenue Debt Service
Fund (02) Fund (10)

Debt Service Enterprise Fund
Fund (10)

Total

Receivable Fund

$ 789,744
835

44,664
106.601

$_941,844

Enterprise Fund and Transfer funds to cover
Others Governmental Section 108 Loan Payment

b. Transfer in/out to other fund

Following is a summary of interfund transfers for the year:

Transfer out

General Fund

Transfer in Purpose

and debt service payments

Transfer funds to cover debt
service payment.

Transfer of funds to cover
Section 108 Loan Payment
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of
acquisition by the Municipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the
issuance of long-term bonds and loans. A summary of capital assets and changes occurring
in 2008, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No.
34, follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:

Governmental Activities:

Capital asset, not being
depreciated:

Construction in progress
Land

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and building
improvements !4,327,449
I nf rastructu re a nd I nfrastructu re
improvements 22,031,61-4
Equipments 3,380,876
Furnishing 774,671
Computers 558,516
Works of art 7,887
Vehicles 5.7L9.6O2

Total capital assets being

Retirements/ Balance
Reclassifications June30.2008

$ (9,641,852) $ 5,489,345
0,662\ 22.775.762

(9.643.51-4) 28.264,507

24,010,741

24,582,926
(148,840) 3,655,807
(23,373) 970,47 4
(10,991) 669,168
(1,100) 6,787

(63.248) 5.743.572

e47.552\ 59.639.475

(6,014,370)

(9,O25,527)
747,653 (2,789,654)
23,760 (668,894)
74,435 (466,048)

73 (7,1,47)
63.248 (5.128.695)

242.569 (24.094.329\

(4.983) 35,545.146

$_19*648191 $_63-809-653

Balance
July L.2OO7

$ 9,799,644
22.534,619

32.334.263

46,794.675

Additions

$5,331,553
242.205

5.573.758

9,689,292

2,557,372
423,777
21..9,176
721_,643

87.278

73.092.472depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and building
improvements (5,642,494)
lnfrastructure and lnfrastructure
improvements (8,467,457)
Equipments (2,634,567)
Furnishing (623,737)
Computers (373,403)
Works of art (490)
Vehicles (4,905.519)

Totalaccumulated depreciation e2.646.667\

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 24.147.954

Governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 56,482,2!7

(372,276)

(558,070)
(296,746)

(68,917)
(107,080)

(724)
Q86.424\

(1.690.237)

77.402.L75

$-16,925.933
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5. CAPTTAL ASSETS (CONTTNUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as

Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Community development

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities

Balance
July 7,2OO7 AdditionsBusiness - type activities

Capital asset, not being
depreciated:

Land

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Building

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Business - type Activities capital
assets, net

Retirements

$ 600,000

600.000

6.669.838

6.669.838

(245.488\ (166.746)

e45.488) (166.746)

6.424.350 (166.746)

$__1*024350 $ (166.746)

follows:

Amount

$ 21.6,255
122,O39
956,371

37,742
136,953
226.877

$l*690232

Balance
June 30. 2008

$ 600.000

600.000

6.669.838

6,669.838

(472.234)

472.234\

6.257,604

$ $__sE57*60Et

Mu n icipality as follows:

$ 166.746

$_166*216

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the
Business -tvpe Activities
Community development

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities
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6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2008 are summarized as follows:

Special
Revenue Fund
(02) - State &
Local Grants

Capital Projects
Fund (20 &

21) - State &
Local Grants

Other
Governmental

Fund TotalDescriotion
General

Fund{01)

Accounts payable $ 949,390

Accrued liabilities 772.283

Total $.1"-0s1-623

$ 232,715

9.898

L_242-613

$ 620,159

1-.989

$___s2-u8

$ 178,950 $ 1,981,,21-4

L1.280 135.450

$__f90230 se,Lt6,6@r

7. PROPERTYTAXES

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by

May 15 of each year with the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM), a governmental
entity created by the government of Puerto Rico as part of the Municipal Governmental
Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece

of real estate and on each building.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for
personal property and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on
personal property must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real
property may be paid in two installments by July 1 and January 1. The CRIM is responsible
for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all the
municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs
the Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the
ensuing fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality
based on the initial estimated collections. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a
settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the
amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This
settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after
fiscal year-end, and a final settlement made not later than six months after year-end. lf the
CRIM remits to the Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually
collected, a receivable from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed
the amount actually collected by the CRIM, a payable to the CRIM is recorded at June 30.
The CRIM issued the preliminary liquidation noting that the collections exceeded advances
by $51,020. ln the governmental funds, the entire receivable has been offset by deferred
revenue since the excess was not available to pay liabilities of the current period. ln the
government-wide financial statements, the entire receivable is recognized as revenue.

35



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASrC FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

7. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

On January 26,2OOO, Public Law No. 42was enacted, which authorized the CRIM to obtain
a loan up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the
financing of the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from
final settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections through fiscal year
ended June 30, 2000. The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from additional
property taxes resulting from increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico to the Municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in
this subsidy was the result of the Public Law No. 238, enacted on August 1-5, 1999. On
October 77,2OO1-, Public Law No. 146 was enacted to amend Public Law No. 42,1o extend
the loan amortization period up to 30 years. Also, on October 71-,2OO2, Public Law No. 172
was enacted, to provide as an option for the Municipalities to include the debt that the
Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of property
tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2OO1- with the loan
authorized through Public Law No. 42 enacled on January 26,2000.

On June 26 1997, Public Law No. 2twas enacted, which authorizing the CRIM, among other
things, to sell the property tax receivables related to taxpayers who owed property taxes
from 1974 to 1996. Such property tax receivables were purchased by the Public Financing
Corporation, a subsidiary of the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB) using
the proceeds of a bond issuance executed for such purposes. Said Law imposed the CRIM
the obligation to replace uncollectible property tax receivables with any valid property tax
receivable o equivalent in money. Subsequent to the approval of the Law and to the sale
transaction, it was detected that a substantial percentage of the receivables sold were
uncollectible. ln order to protect the economic damage to the financial structure of
municipalities caused by the substitution of uncollectible tax receivables with sound
collectible receivables, on October 1,1, 2OOL. Public Law No. 146 was approved and
enacted. Through this Law, the CRIM was authorized to obtain a loan from any qualified
financial institution and pay in advance the outstanding balance of the bonds issued and
any related cost incurred for the purchase by the Public Financing Corporation (a GDB
subsidiary) of the tax receivables.

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of
property taxes on the first $ 15,OO0 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts,
the Puerto Rico Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the
Municipalities, except for property assessed at less than $ 3,500 for which no payment is
made. As part of the Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid by
the Puerto Rico Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of Janu ary t, !992.
ln addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of
up to $ 50,000 of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than
$150,000.
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PROPERTY TAXES (CONTIN UED)

The annual tax rate is 8.58% for real property and 6.58% for personal property of which

t.O3% of both tax rates are forthe redemption of public debt issued bythe Commonwealth

of Puerto Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 5.8% and 3.8%,

respectively, represents the Municipality's basic property tax rate which is appropriated for
basics and accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an

equalization fund together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico

electronic lottery and a subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a

distribution is made to all municipalities; (b) 1,.75%o represents the ad valorem tax restricted

for debt service and accounted for in the debt service fund. The Commonwealth also

contributes an annual tax rate of O.2o/o of the property tax collected and such amount is
accounted for similar to item (a) above.

MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX

On July 29, 2OO7, an amendment to Act No. 11-7 of )uly 4, 2006, known as the "Tax

Fairness Act of 2006", was enacted with the purpose of establishing a mandatory sales and

use tax o'f 1,.5% atthe Municipal Level. The Municipalities of Puerto Rico are responsible to
collect t% of the corresponding tax with the same exemptions and limitations that the
portion collected by the Treasury Department. The Act provides an optional surtax on the un-

process food. This surtax must be approved by the Municipal Legislature. The Treasury
Department is responsible to create, the Municipal Development Fund (.01%), the Municipal
Redemption Fund (.03%) and the Municipal lmprovements Fund (.O1%o) with the remaining
O.5o/o. The Municipality collected approximatety $ 1,650,000 during the year ended June 30,
2008.

DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the general fund include the following:

8.

9.

Governmental Entitv

Genera I Services Adm i nistration
Reti rement System Adm inistration
Puerto Rico Telephone ComPanY
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority
State lnsurance Fund Corporation
Department of Labor-Unemployment Program
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employee Association

Total

Amount

$ 232
!47,8L5

71,,382
11,,760
67,907
15,000
24,434

$___zt-930

lO.DEFERRED REVENUES

A. Municipal License Tax- The deferred revenues of $9,1-13,339 in the general fund relates
to municipal license tax collected in fiscal year 2OO7-O8 that will be earned in fiscal year

2008-09.
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10. DEFERRED REVENUES (CONTTNUED)

B. Federal Grants- The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds
represents the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have
not been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal government are as follows:

ProEram Description

Child Care and Development Block Grants
Others

Total

11. LONG-TERM LIABI LITI ES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Description
Beginning Borrowings Payments or Ending
Balance or Additions Deductions Balance

Amount

$ 96,6s0
l.5.324

$_4ttp54

Due Within
One Year

Bonds Payable
Notes Payable
State lnsurance Fund
Corporation

$19,505,000 $1,s80,000
7,845,000 3,885,000

2Lt,OL6
406,OO2

$ (555,000) $ 2O,53O,OOO
(345,000) 11,385,000

2L7,OL6
(104,166) 301,836
(181,495) 3,456,299
(47.OOO) 812.OOO

sg232S6A $36.6e6J5!

LIMS
Compensated absences 3,637,794
Landfillobligation 859.000

$ 690,000
450,OOO

1o4,767
400,000

47.000

$1*0srJ6zTotal $3t&t6Jg1 $6*082*qt8

L. Legal debt margin- The Municipality is subject to a legal debt margin requirement, which
is equal lo tOo/o of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality plus

balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service. ln addition, before any
new bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to
cover the projected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, except for the bonds
payable, is paid with unrestricted funds.
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LL. LONG-TERM LIABIL|TIES (CONTTNUED)

2. Bonds Payable- The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable
outstanding at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Type of bonds
Maturity

Date
Original
Amount

Range of Balance at
lnterest Rates June 30,2OO8

1995 Series 7-L-27
1999 Series 7-L-24
1999 Series 7-t-24
2OOO Series 7-L-25
2OO2 Series 7-L-27
2OO2 Series 7-!-26
2OO4 Series 7-7-29
2OO4 Series 7-7-1,4
2OO5 Series 7-1,-29
2OO5 Series 7-L-2L
2006 Series 7-L-31,
2OO8 Series 7-7-77

Total general obliSation bonds

$ 605,000
260,000
710,OOO

6,440,000
r-,335,000

580,000
4,O20,OOO

905,OOO
435,OOO
730,000

5,O50,OOO
1,580,000

4.860/olo 6.75o/o
2.7ooklo 7.8Lo/o

2.8Oo/o lo 7 .8to/o
2.7Oo/olo 7.87o/o

5.0% to 6.5%
5.0% to 6.5%

5.OO%
5.OO%

4.3Oo/o to 5.O%

4.3O%o to 5.0%
6.62%o1o7.25%

5.OO%

$ 470,OOO
220,OOO
610,000

5,650,000
1,105,000

515,OOO
3,735,000

595,OOO
405,OOO
675,OOO

4,970,00O
1,580,000

$ 20,530,000

These bonds are payable from the special ad valorem property tax of !.75% which is
restricted for debt service and retained by the Government Development Bank for Puerto
Rico for such purposes. Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable
are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal lnterest

2009
20LO
20t7
2012
201.3
201"4-20t8
20L9-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033

Total

$ 690,000
740,OOO
795,000
850,OOO
910,000

5,025,000
5,180,000
4,525,000
1,81s,OOO

$ 1,071,389
1,,1,41,506
1,o98,527
7,052,O!3
t,oo2,o37
4,775,680
2,677,O81
L,L82,064

225,787

$ 20,s30,0o0 $ 13,626,084
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tL. LONG-TERM LIABILTTTES (CONTINUED)

3. Notes Payable- The proceeds of the issuance of notes payable were used principally to
pay debt incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. The
notes are payable as follows:

Type of notes
Maturity

Date
Original
Amount

Range of
lnterest rates

Balance at
June 30,

2008

2OO3 General obligations notes

2006 General obligations notes
2OO4-ASeries- Section 108 Loan
2006-A Series- Section 108 Loan
2OO7 General obligations notes
2OO7 General obligations notes
2OO8 Special obligation note

Total notes payable

Year Ending
June 30,

7-7-tO

7-L-L3
8-L-22
8-L-24
7-t-L4
7-7-74
7-t-32

$ 725,OOO

545,OOO
5,100,000
1,895,000

270,000
445,OOO

3,170,000

5.0% to 6.0%

6.620/olo 7.25%
Variable
Varrable

3.93% 1o 7.5Oo/o

3.93Voto 7.5Oo/o

7.500/o

Principal

$
350,000
480,OOO

4,825,000
1,845,000

270,OOO
445,OOO

3,170,000

$ 11,385,000

These notes are payable from the special ad valorem property tax of 1,.75o/o and the
Municipal sales and use tax of (.030%) which are restricted for debt service and retained
by the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

lnterest

2009
20to
201,L
201-2
20!3
20!4-20L8
20!9-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033

Total

$ 450,OOO
540,000
600,ooo
596,000
636,000

2,970,0O0
3,375,000
1,O53,OOO

1,165,000

$ 554,213
660,695
628,952
594,483
557,939

2,243,424
1,337,053

6t1,,230
231-,562

$ 11,385,OOO $ 7,419,551

4. Compensated absences- The government-wide statement of net assets includes
approximately $1,974,000 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately
$1,482,000 of accrued vacation benefits, representing the Municipality's commitment
to fund such costs from future operations.
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11. LONG-TERM LIABI Llrl ES (CONTI NUED)

S. Landfill obligation- State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to
place a final cover on its landfill site since 1994, when itstopped acceptingwaste, and

perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after

closure. ln accordance with Statement No. 18 of the GASB, "Accounting for Municipal

Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Costs", the Municipality has

performed a study of the activities that need to be implemented at the Municipality's
landfill to comply with applicable state and federal regulations. Based on this study, the

Municipality has recognized $ 812,000 as the Municipality's estimated current cost for
landfill post-closure costs as of June 3O, 2008. The annual estimate of post closure

costs has been assessed approximately to be $ 47,000 for a period of approximately 18
years. Actual costs may be different due to inflation, changes in technologY, or changes

in laws and regulations. The balance of post-closure costs is reported in the
government-wide statement of net assets.

12. PENSION PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its lnstrumentalities (the

Retirement System) is a cost-sharing multiple defined benefit pension plans sponsored by,

and repofted as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. All regular

employees of the Municipality under 55 years of age at the date of employment become

members of the Retirement System as a condition to their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to
legislation enacted by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefits are

available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement

benefits depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditable service.

Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation.

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of

creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten

years of creditable service are entitled to an annual benefit payable monthly for life.

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation,

as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus

two percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of

creditable service in excess of 20 years. ln no case will the annuity be less than $200 per

month.

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to
receive the Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65
percent of the average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of
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12. PENSTON PLAN (CONTINUED)

the average compensation, as defined. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a

refund of his/her accumulated contributions.

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribule 5.775o/o for the first $550 of
their monthly gross salary and 8.275o/o for the excess over $ 550 of monthly gross salary.

The Municipality is required by the same statute to contribule 9.275o/o of the participant's
gross salary. Total Municipality contributions during the year ended June 30, 2008
amounted to approximately $712,656, this amount represented lOO%o of the required

contribution.

On September 24,1999, an amendment to Act. No. 447 of May 75, L951-, which created

the Retirement System, was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension

program (System 2OOO). Employee's participation in the current system as of December 31,
1999, may elect to stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to the new program. Persons
joining the Municipality on or after January t, 2000, will only be allowed to become

members of System 2000. System 2000 will reduce the retirement age from 65 years to 60
for those employees who joined the current plan on or after April 1, 1990.

System 2OOO is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan.

Under this new plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by ERS

together with those of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

will not guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity will be based on a formula which

assumes that each year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.275o/o to the

employee's salary up to a maximum of tOo/o\ will be invested in an account which will either:
(1) earn a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a

rate equal lo 75o/o of the return of the ERS's investment portfolio (net of management fees),

or (3) earn a combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic account
statements similar to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances.

Disability pensions will not be granted under System 2000. The employer's contribution
(9.275% of the employee's salary) will be used to fund the current plan.

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2008, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement

System, Minillas Station, PO Box 42OO4, San Juan, PR 00940'
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13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Property Division of the Municipality is responsible of assuring that the Municipality's
property is properly insured. Annually, the Property Division compiles the information of all
property owned and its respective market value. After evaluating this information, the
Property Division submits the data regarding the Municipality's properties to the Area of
Public lnsurance at the Department of the Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

who is responsible for purchasing all property and casualty insurance policies of all
municipalities. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

14. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements that have effective dates after June 30,
2008:

a. GASB Statement No.51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for lntangible Assets,
which is effective for periods beginning after June L5,2OO9.

b. GASB Statement No.52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as lnvestments by
Endowments, which is effective for periods beginning after June 1-5, 2008.

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's basic financial statements has not yet
been determined.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONT!NGENCIES

Federalgrants:

The Municipality participates in a number of Federal Financial Assistance Programs.
Although the Municipality's grant programs have been audited in accordance with the
provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996, through June 30, 2008, these programs are
still subject to financial and compliance audits by the granting agencies and the
resolution of previously identified questioned costs. The amount, if any, of expenditures
which may be disallowed by the grating agencies cannot be determined at this time,
although the Municipality expects such amounts, if any, not to be material.

Claims and lawsuits:

The Municipality is a defendant in several legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary
course of the Municipality's activities. Certain of these claims are covered by insurance.
The administration believes that the ultimate liability, if any, would not be significant. As
a result, the accompanying financial statements do not include adjustments, if any, that
could result from the resolution of these legal proceedings.

A.

B.
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Original Final
BudEeted Amounts

Actual Amounts
(Budgetary Basis)

(See Note 1)

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES:

Property taxes
Municipal license tax
Fines and forfeiture
Licenses, permits and other local taxes
Charges for services
lntergovern mental
I nterest
Rent of property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Budget carryover (1)

Total revenues after carryover
EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Economic development
Operating transfer to other funds

Total expenditures, encumbrances and other
financing uses

EXCESS (DEFTCTENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

$ 4,352,323 $ 4,352,323
71,L88,562 11,890,079

20,000 23,800
650,000 473,033
30,000 29,477

3,960,735 3,787,509
375,000 647,568
67,800 3,901

361.000 281.093

27,005,420 21,488,783

_-._: 1".43a.725

21,.005.420 22.927.504

77,23L,O80
L,A12,3!6
4,475,LOL
1,706,245
1,383,396

397,282

Lt,207,720
!,76A,797
5,077,989
2,730,478
L,L93,277

350,774
605.133

$ 21.005.420 $ 22.927.508

$ 4,462,552
11,931,580

230,494
477,454
22,521

3,891,189
852,824

5,501
392.460

22,200,975

L43a.725

23,639.700

70,913,295
7,763,777
4,960,009
2,689,442
1,039,477

239,405
605.133

22.21O.478

$ 7.429.222

$ tLo,229
41,50!

206,694
(67,L7e)

(6,e56)
103,680
205,256

1,600
LLl.367
712,L92

,-.*,

288,425
4,480

117,980
4!,036

L53,740
LLt,369_

7L7.O30

$ 7.429.222

$ 23,639,700

0,.438.725\

$ 22.200.975

$ 22,2LO,478

309,896
4L3,433

(258,485)

s_2.il5322

Explanation of Differences:

Sources/inf lows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis)"available for appropriation" from the budgetary comparison schedule
Differences-budget to GAAP:

Budget Carryover
Total revenues and other financing sources as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and

changes in fund balances

Uses/outf lows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis)"total charges to appropriations" from the budgetary comparison

schedule
Differences-budget to GAAP:

Non-budgeted expend itures
Prior year encumbrances recorded as current year expenditures for GAAP basis

Current year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes

Total expenditures and other financing uses as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and

changes in fund balances

(1) Represents fund balance carried over from prior year.
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L. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BudEetarv Control

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which

is not in accordance with USGMP, and represents departmental appropriations
recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the
Municipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as Mayor's

Resolutions, do not require the approval of the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e.,

purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For USGAAP

reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of
fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments
will be honored duringthe subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse at
the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project appropriations, are

continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent

balance from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is

the budget ordinance at June 30, 2008 representing the original budget. There were no

supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2008.
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Federa I Grantor / Pass-th rough
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Federal Pass-through
CFDA Entity ldentifying

Number Number Expenditures

v 
u.s. DEPARTMENT oF AGRTCULTURE:

Direct Programs:
Housing Preservation Grant

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE:

Direct Programs:
Grants for Public Works and
Economic Development

Total U.S. Department of Commerce

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

Direct Program:
Housing Assistance Cou ncil
Community Development Block
G rants/Entitlement Grants
Section 8 Housing Choice
Vouchers
Pass-through Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Department of the
Family:

Emergency Shelter Grants
Program

v Total U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development:

10.433

11.300

L4.169

74.278

L4.877

ESG-04-DC-
1"4.231 720007

$ s,zoe

5,708

2,828

2,828

5,648

7,506,273

1,092,389

26,339

2,630,649
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Federa ! Grantor / Pass-th ro ugh
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Federal Pass-through
CFDA Entity ldentifying

Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION:

Pass-through Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Department Highway

-, Safety Authority:
Federal Transit: Formula Grants 2O.5O7 Not Available

Pass-through Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Department Highway
Safety and Drunk:

v 
Driving Prevention lncentive Grant 20.60! 06-03-08

Total U.S. Department of
Transportation

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
V SECURITY

Pass-through the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Governor Authorized
Representative (GAR):

Hazard M itigation Grant
Homeland Security Grant

Total U.S. Department of Homeland
Security

336,209

7,738

343,347

83.548 PROO22 & 0023 13,936
96.067 2005-cFT54009 90,969

104,805
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Federal Pass-through
Federal Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Entity ldentifying
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

V U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico - Family Department
(ACUDEN):Y 

Child Care and Development Block
Grant

Tota! U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL
AWARDS

93.575 Not Available 9,163

9,163

$ 3,096,500

4A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant

activity of the Municipality of Cidra and is presented on the modified accrual basis of

accounting. The basis of accounting is the same used to prepare the fund financial

statements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the

requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit

Organizations.

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS:

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Special Revenue Fund

(O2) and in the Other Governmental Funds in the Municipality's fund financial statements.
The reconciliation between the expenditures in the funds financial statements and the

disbursements in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is as follows:

2.

Description

Special
Revenue Fund

(02)

Other
Governmental

Funds Total

$ 2,949,055 $ 3,096,500

1,4L8,t57 10,900,647

$ 4,367,206 5 L3,997,1,47

Per Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards

Non federal
programs
expenditures

Total expenditures in the basic financial
statements

$ 747,445

3,090,126

$ 3.237,577
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Certified Public Accountants / Management Advisors

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MAfiERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCO R DAN CE WITH GOV ER N M ENT AU D ITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipal Legislature
Municipality of Cidra
Cidra, Puerto Rico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Cidra, Puerto Rico, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 10, 2008, which was
unqualified. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting
ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municipality of Cidra's internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality of Cidra's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality of
Cidra's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects Municipality of Cidra's
ability to initiate, authorize, record, process or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of Municipality of Cidra's financial statements that is more than inconsequential
will not be prevented or detected by Municipality of Cidra's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial
statements will not be prevented or detected by Municipality of Cidra's internal control.

lr{ember of:
. American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants

. Puerto Rico Society of
Certified Public Accountants
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCO R DAN CE W|TH GOV ER N M ENT AU D ITING STANDARDS (CO NTt N U E D)

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality of Cidra's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
G ov e r n m e nt Au diti n g Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its

San Juan, Puerto Rico
December 1-0, 2008

Stamp No.2372217 of the Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy of this report.

Ldpez-Yega, CPA, PSC

)

\
Certified Public Accountants / lvlanagement Advisors
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Member of:
. American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants

. Puerto Rico Society of
Certified Public Accountants

Certified Public Accountants / Management Advisors
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB
CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipal Legislature
Municipality of Cidra
Cidra, Puerto Rico

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the Municipality of Cidra with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of ManaSement and Bud{et (OMB) Circular A-733
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2008. The Municipality of Cidra's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, reSulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Municipality of Cidra's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipality of Cidra's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and OMB Circular A-l-33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Municipality
of Cidra's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Municipality of
Cidra's compliance with those requirements.

ln our opinion, the Municipality of Cidra complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2008. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances
of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items, 08-0l through O8O3.
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REPORT ON COMPLTANCE WITH REQUTREMENTS APPLTCABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB

crRcur-AR A-133 (CONTTNUED)

lnternal Control Over Compliance
The management of the Municipality of Cidra is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to federal programs. ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the
Municipality of Cidra's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality of Cidra's internal control over
compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a contrsl does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of federal program on timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to
administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. We consider
the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as items, 08-0l through 08-03 to be significant deficiencies.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal
control. We do not consider any of the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses.

The Municipality of Cidra's response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Municipality of
Cidra's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

/ Lipez-Vega, CPA, PSC

Certified Public A.ccountants / N,Ianagemerrt Advisors
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB

crRcuLAR A-133 (CONTINUED)

This report is intended for the information of the management and federal awarding agencies
and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is
not limited.

,4

///

{,tr-l/fr,ffi
San Juan, Puefto Rico
March 20,2OOg

Stamp No.231221-8 of the Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy of this report.

Ldpez-Yega, CPA, PSC

.t

/
\ 7

Certified Public Acc<tuntants I Manaeement Advisors
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

ScHEDULE OF FtNDtNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

y Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

lnternal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? Yes No X
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses? Yes None reported X

Noncompliance material to financial statements
v noted? Yes No X

Federal awards

lnternal Control over major programs:

Materialweakness identified? Yes No X

Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material wea knesses?

Tyre of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Yes X None reported

Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required Yes X No
to be reported in accordance with Circular
A-133, Section .51-0(a)?

v ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14.278 Community Development Block Grant - Entitlement Grant

74.87 7 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher

2O.5O7 FederalTransit Formula Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$ 300,000

Yes X No
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FTNDINGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Section Il - FinancialStatements Findings

v During our audit, we did not detect significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances
of noncompliance related to the general purpose financial statements that are required to be
reported in accordance with Government Auditin{ Standards.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

ScHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

v Finding Reference 08-01

Program Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants (CFDA
L4.2LB); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

v 
Requirement Earmarking

Statement of Condition We realized Earmarking Test for Community Development Block
Grant/Entitlement Program and after our procedures we found that the
Municipality has not comply with the seventy percent (7oyo) of the funds
that must be used over a period of up to three years for activities that

v benefit low - and moderate - income persons.

criteria 24 CFR sections 570.20O(a) (3) and 570.208(a) established the criteria
in determined low - and moderate - income benefits.

v causeof condton 
u:#,.111.J?:ffiil:?T;:;::1,1 :H"'Jffi;i1i:"'J,11?il"ffrct 

the

Effectof Condition The Municipality is not in compliance with the 24 CFR sections
570.200(a) (3) and 57O.208(a).

y Recommendation We recommend that the Municipality should strengthen its procedures in
order to assure compliance with the program requirements.

Questioned Costs None

Management Response

v and Corrective Action The Municipality will take the necessary steps to avoid not compliance
with 70% of funds to be used over a period of up to three years for
activities that benefit low-and moderate-income persons. The
Municipality will develop a corrective action plan to be submitted to HUD
Caribbean Office on later than April L5,2OO9.

Responsible Person: Georges Pereira
Federal Program Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

ScHEDULE OF FINDtNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned costs

Finding Reference

Program

Requirement

Statement of Condition

Criteria

Cause of Condition

Effect of Condition

Recommendation

Questioned Costs

08-02

community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants (OFDA
La.2L8); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Reporting - Performance Reporting

HUD-60002, Section 3 Summary Report, Economic Opportunities for
Low and Very Low-lncome Persons, (OMB No. 2529-0043) was not
submitted for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

24 CFR sections 135.3 (a), 135.9O, and 570.607. Section J_35.3 (a)
states that Section 3 applies to training, employment, contracting and
other economic opportunities arising in connection with the expenditure
of housing assistance and community development assistance that is
used for the following projects: Housing rehabilitation, housing
construction, and other public construction. Section 135.90, states that
each recipient which receives directly from HUD financial assistance that
is subject to the requirements of this part shall submit an annual report
for the purpose of determining the effectiveness of section 3. where the
program providing the Section 3 assistance requires submission of an
annual performance report, the Section 3 report will be submitted with
the annual performance report. lf the program does not require an
annual performance report the report shall be submitted by January 10
of each year or within 10 days of project completion, whichever is earlier.
Section 570.607 state regulations for employment and contracting
opportunities for low and very low income persons.

The Municipality did not comply with the established regulation as
prescribed by HUD.

The Municipality may risk future federal programs funds if it does not
come in compliance with HUD requirements stated in 24 CFR 135.3 (a),
135.90, and 570.607.

Procedures should be implemented to ascertain that the Municipality
complies with the established Federal Regulation, as prescribed by HUD.

None
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FtNDINGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and euestioned costs

Finding Reference 08-02 (Continued)

Management Response
andcorrectiveAction The Municipality will take procedures to comply with the preparation of

the Form HUD-60002, Section 3 Summary Report, Economic
opportunities for Low and very Low-lncome Persons. The Municipality
will submit a corrective action plan outlining this finding to be corrected
in a detail manner no later than April 15, 2009.

Responsible Person: Georges Pereira
Federal Program Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FtNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Section Ill - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

y Finding Reference 08-03

Program Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants (CFDA
1,4.2L8); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

y Requirement SpecialTest - Environmental Reviews

Statementof condition We realized Earmarking Test for Community Development Block
Grant/Entitlement Program and after our procedures we found the
following exceptions:

1)The Department's management does not maintain project files
(Environmental Review Record) to compile information about their
compliance with the environmental review responsibility.

2) For the projects where the environmental review was not
performed, a written determination, consistent 24 CFR Part 58.34
and 58.35 (b), was not made by the Department (Establishing that
the environmental review was not required).

Criteria 24 CFR Subtitle A, Subpart C, 58.1, 58.22,58.34, 58.35 and 570.604
states that the projects must have an environmental review unless they
meet criteria specified in the regulations that would exempt or exclude
them from PROF and environmental certification requirements.

Cause of Condition The Municipality's must strengthen its internal control to assure that
environmental review record were prepared and stores in an area

y accessible to audits and monitoring reviews.

Effectof Condition The Municipality is not in compliance with lhe 24 CFR sections 58.1,
58.22,58.34, 58.35 and 570.604

Recommendation We recommend management to maintain detailed files documenting the
projects PROF approval or a written determination where explain why the
environmental review was not required.

Questioned Costs None
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FtNDtNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned costs

Finding Reference

Program

Management Response
and Corrective Action

08-03 (Continued)

community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants (CFDA
L4.2L8); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

The Municipality will take internal control and procedures in the
preparation of the project files (Environmental Review Records) to
comply with the established Federal Regulations CFR Subtitle A, Subpart
C, 58.1, 58.22,58.34, 58.35 and 570.604for the next FY. ln early 2009
the Municipality placed special attention to its CDBG program. The
Municipality strategy was to give the director of Federal Affairs and the
CDBG accountant additional support to the CDBG program in order avoid
future findings as the one mentioned above. The Municipality will submit
a corrective action plan detailing how this finding will be corrected no
later than April 15, 2009.

Responsible Person: Georges Pereira
Federal Program Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Original
Finding
Number

CFDA
No.

current status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award Findings - part lll Findings
(As required by OMB Circutar A-133)

07-o7 1,4.218
During our contract provision test. we verifie
the fiscal vear 2006-2007. The followin{ summarize the situations found:
One (1) contracts did not include provisions compliance with Davis Bacon
Act: Four (4) contract did not include provision for granting access to GAo
or other Federal Agencv. to books. documents. etc: Four (4) contracts did
not include a provision for compliance with the copeland "Anti-kickback":

Full corrective action has been taken.

07-o2 1,4.871.
We realized Cash Management Test for Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
Program and after our procedures: we found that the Municipality
maintained during the current fiscal year a monthly average cash balance
in books of approximately $270.108.07. At June 30. 2007. the cash
balance in books was $263.412.85.

Full corrective action has been taken.

06-01 1,4.871 we recommended management to follow the procedures established in
the operational guide title "Manual Operacional Programa Auxiliares del
Hogar". including the use of the forms included on it and to assure that
the participant's files included all the required documents to comply with
the program reouirements.

Full corrective action has been taken.

06-02 1,4.877 The Municipality should strenethen it's procedures to instruct the program
accountant to review the accounting records and related transactions
supporting documents for the current and past years in order to identify
the cash balance respect to its origin. and later, to make any necessarv
adjusting iournal entries to correct accounting records. ln the case that
the program identifies a possible overpayment at vear end. the program
staff must consider submitting a revised requisition (Form-52663) to the
federal agencv to reduce the monthlLadvances received.

Full corrective action was taken.

05-01 1.4.278 The Municipality staff should obtain training for manage the program
lntegrated Disbursement and lnformation Svstem (lDlS) from the HUD
Caribbean Office. external consultants or in-house trainings using the lDlS
Reference Manual. which includes explanations about how to runs reports
and extracts data from lDlS.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OO8

Original
Finding
Number

CFDA
No.

current status of Prior Year Audit FederalAward Findings - part lll Findings
(As required by OMB Circutar 4-133)

Audit finding is no longer valid since has passed more than two (2) years
since the reports were submitted to Single Audit clearinghouse. Th"
Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is not giving
follow-up to the finding and has not issued a final decision respect to the
finding.

05-o2 14.871,

tracin{ of 0articipants selected from the waiting list in order to ascertain

oarticipants and the date that the voucher was issued.

Audit finding is no longer valid since has passed more than two (2) years
since the reports were submitted to single Audit clearinghouse. The
Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is not giving
follow-up to the finding and has not issued a final decision respect to the
finding.

05-03 20.507 The Municipality should strengthen its procedures in order to assure that

Audit finding is no longer valid since has passed more than two (2) years
since the reports were submitted to Single Audit clearinghouse. The
Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is not giving
follow-up to the finding and has not issued a final decision respect to the
finding.
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